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June 21, 2024

To the Citizens of the City of Winfield, Kansas
Honorable Mayor and City Commissioners

This document is the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the City of Winfield, Kansas for
the year ended December 31, 2023. This report was prepared by the City’s finance department.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the City. We believe the report, as
presented, is accurate in all material respects. We also believe it is presented in a manner designed to set
forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its
various funds. Finally, we believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum
understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been included.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and
Statistical. The introductory section includes a description of the City, including services provided, and
explanation of the City’s accounting system and budgetary controls, and a brief discussion of the City’s
economic condition and outlook. The City’s organizational chart is also included to assist the reader in
understanding the structure of the City. The financial section includes the independent auditor’s report,
Management’s Discussion & Analysis, Government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements,
notes to the financial statements, and individual and combing statements and schedules. The statistical
section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis.

The reader is specifically directed to Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) which immediately
follows the independent auditor’s report. MD&A provides a narrative explanation and overview of significant
features and trends reflected by data in the financial statements.

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure to
ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adequate
accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The cost of the internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits. Thus, the City of Winfield’s internal controls are designed to provide reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Kansas Statute 75-1122 requires an annual audit of all funds of the City by independent certified public
accountants. The firm of Loyd Group, LLC issued an unmodified opinion on the City of Winfield’s financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. The independent auditor’s report is located on page 9
in the Financial Section of this report.

Profile of the Government

The City of Winfield, incorporated in 1873, has a population of 11,669 and has an incorporated area of
12.35 square miles. Winfield is located in south central Kansas, less than an hour away from Wichita, and
two hours from Tulsa and Oklahoma City. Winfield serves as the county seat for Cowley County, population
of approximately 34,453.



The City is unique in providing its citizens with a full range of municipal utility services, including electric
and gas utilities, water, wastewater, and sanitation services. Other municipal services include police and
fire protection, ambulance services, construction and maintenance of streets, drainage facilities, and other
infrastructure, recreation and cultural activities, a municipal golf course, community, and industrial
development, planning and zoning, building inspection, cemetery operations and maintenance, general
administration, and internal support services. The City provides limited recycling to its citizens and
composting site facilities, available at no charge to area residents. In addition, library services and low-
income housing are provided by component units of the City. Additional information on the component units
can be found in Note 1 in the notes to the financial statements.

The City of Winfield operates under a Commission/Manager form of government. One member of the three-
member commission is elected annually by the Commission to act as Mayor. The City Manager is
appointed by the City Commission and is responsible to them for the management of all City employees
and administration of all City affairs. Regular city elections are held in odd years. The person receiving the
largest number of votes is elected to a four-year term and the person receiving the second largest number
of votes is elected to a two-year term.

Expenditures are authorized by a budget approved by the City Commission as required by State statute.
The State statute level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the
appropriated amount) is established at an individual fund level but is monitored by department within each
fund. The City Manager and Finance Department continually review and approve all significant deviations
from budget authorizations. The Kansas cash basis and budget laws requires cash be on hand before an
expenditure is authorized, that all expenditures be budgeted (unless specifically exempted by statute), and
that the budget not exceed anticipated revenues, including carry forward balances. Budget-to-actual
comparisons are provided in this report for each individual fund in which an adopted annual operating
budget is required by Kansas statute.

Economic Condition and Outlook

Winfield is home to three state agencies including the Winfield Correctional Facility, the Department of
Children and Family Services, and the Kansas Veterans Home at Winfield. Winfield Correctional Facility,
operated by the State of Kansas, consolidated facilities and expanded operations and employment in
Winfield.

The City manages its economic development and industrial development work in tandem with Cowley First,
the eco-devo arm of Cowley County. Additionally, the City works closely with Winfield Economic
Development, Inc., a non-profit economic development group that owns industrial property; The City
supports the operations and development of both the Winfield Chamber of Commerce, and Winfield Main
Street as well as many other non-profit entities that support the community.

2023 sales tax showed a 7.83% positive change in sales tax collections from 2022 based on a 1 cent sales
tax. In June of 2019, the City’s residents approved a measure to replace the four-tenths of one percent
(.40%) which was to be used for street improvements with a one percent (1%) sales tax to be used for
funding the proposed Public Safety Facility, street improvements, and other capital projects. The one
percent (1%) sales tax began October 1, 2020 and will expire September 30, 2045.

Real estate property assessed valuation showed a 16.9% increase in 2023, reflecting steady property
values. The total value of construction for the 2023 year was substantially lower than last year due to
several large multifamily residential projects in 2022. The City issued 6 single-family dwelling permits which
is near the average for recent years. However, six multi-family dwelling permits were issued for a total of
48 new multi-family dwelling units which is higher than normal. These projects along with several
substantial commercial projects brought the total value of permits to $24,096,874. At the end of 2022,
Cowley County unemployment was at 2.3%, which is slightly lower than the unemployment rate of 2.8% at
the end of 2022. With the increase in sales tax as well as permit dollars issued, as well as the unemployment
rate indicates a continued improving economic environment.



City Business and Financial Planning

The City annually revises the current year’s budget during preparation of the upcoming year budget, to
provide internal management with better oversight. Additionally, the City maintains a five-year projected
budget for its Capital Improvement Fund, for internal purposes.

The City manages its finances with a long-term perspective. Reacting to the ongoing cutbacks in state
funding, the City increased fees for many of its fee-based services. The City increased water rates in 2014,
and, made other adjustments to these increases in 2017 to cover current debt as well as building a fund
balance in the water fund for future projects. There was an increase in electric rates in 2014 which comes
after numerous years of increasing electric costs and no corresponding increase to base rates. The
Commission also approved an increase to the City’s refuse rates to plan for future capital items and to
steady the uncertain recycling market. In addition, sewer user rates were increased in 2018 to plan for
future capital purchases and upgrades to the wastewater treatment facility. The City has resisted tax
increases in the past several years to cover ongoing services, instead looking at long-term efficiencies and
alternatives. Modest electric water and wastewater rate increases were put in place in 2022 to assist with
the payment of a new metering infrastructure. In 2023, the City increased property tax collections to combat
inflationary increases. The City has been able to sustain a level mill levy in dollars for a decade, though
actual levies fluctuated slightly with changes in assessed valuation. The City monitors its utility funds’ cash
balances and future capital needs. Rate increases, when necessary, are designed to cover long-term needs
of the utility.

Over the past fifteen years, the City has undertaken numerous significant capital projects that have greatly
improved the overall quality of life for its residents while also ensuring the maintenance of essential city
infrastructure. From 2009 to 2012, the focus was on stabilizing the city's financial situation by reducing
bonded indebtedness. In October 2015, the City opted to refinance existing debt and temporary notes by
issuing general obligation debt. In 2018, bonds were issued to pay off previous temporary note obligations
related to various projects.

In 2019, the City issued bonds to initiate Phase | of the Public Safety Facility and also refinanced existing
debt, temporary notes, and financed new projects such as Country Club Villas. Two bond issues were
completed in 2020. The first, Issue 2020-A, supported a project at Strother Field Industrial Park, jointly
owned by the City of Winfield and the City of Arkansas City, as well as a CCLIP project on US Highway 77.
The second, Issue 2020-B, funded a benefit district for infrastructure improvements in Stonebrook
Subdivision, supported the 2020 CCLIP project on US Highway 160, and financed a significant transmission
project for the Electric Utility.

In 2021, the City issued temporary notes for repairs to Meyer Hall and the implementation of the Advanced
Metering Infrastructure project. Most recently, in 2022, the City issued bonds to refinance the temporary
notes from 2021, finance two transmission projects for the Electric Utility, and support a project at Strother
Field Industrial Park. The City continues to assess its financial objectives with the expectation of an
improving economy.

The City’s insurance and self-insurance programs have been funded and administered as part of the City’s
Risk management. Funds were maintained in a reserve fund as authorized in Kansas Statutes.
Additionally, the City maintains insurance policies and bonds as detailed in the Additional Information
Section of this report. The City currently maintains full workers’ compensation coverage through the Kansas
Eastern Region Insurance Trust group (KERIT) but continues to fund the Risk Management reserve to fulfill
liabilities prior to transitioning to KERIT in 2011.

Cash Management Policies and Practices

The City maintains its cash and investments under a pooled concept. This mechanism enhances the City’s
investment possibilities. The City requests competitive bids on all investments in accordance with K.S.A.
12-1675. Idle funds are used to purchase certificates of deposit or other allowable investments, with
maturities scheduled to meet anticipated cash flow requirements. During 2023, an average of $9 million



was invested for an average of 249 days, at an average rate of 5.16%. The City is actively evaluating cash
flow scenarios and reinvestment opportunities through shorter term investments during the current rising
rate environment.

Major Initiatives

City of Winfield continues to maintain its single-family home builds and has made significant efforts
to increase the amount of multifamily workforce housing in the community.

The City began collecting sales tax from an increase for a 7 year period for library renovations and
street/infrastructure improvements. Voters approved an additional .4% sales tax increase in
February 2014, with 81% of those voting in favor of the increase. The increase went into effect
July 1, 2014. The library portion of $900,000 was reached in March of 2016. Going forward, all
collections will be used for street and ADA projects. In June of 2019, the City’s residents approved
a measure to replace the four-tenths of one percent (.40%) with a one percent (1%) sales tax to be
used for funding the proposed Public Safety Facility, street improvements, and other capital
projects. The one percent (1%) sales tax began October 1, 2019 and is set to expire September
30, 2045.

The City entered into an agreement with USD 465 for the transfer of property as the proposed site
of a future public safety facility. The City also entered into an agreement with Agora Architecture to
provide professional design services for Phase | of this project. Demolition of the current structure
located on the site was finished in the Fall of 2018. The construction of Phase 2, Fire Department
Bay Addition, was completed in the fall of 2022. Construction on what was originally considered
Phase 4, the renovation of the historic fire station, began in July of 2022 with an estimated
completion date of the fall of 2023. The city has entered into an agreement with Agora architecture
for the design of Phase 3, the Police Department and Shared Public Safety spaces in July of
2022. This phase is the final anticipated phase for the project which was awarded to Dondlinger
and Sons Construction Company, Inc. in the fall of 2023 with a construction completion date of
early 2025.

2023 Street Projects as follows: 2023 Mill and Overlay projects were completed for the following
areas, 4" Ave, Ames, Houston, and a portion of Warren.

Approval of an agreement between the City and Midwest Moos, Inc. for a field agreement at
Broadway Sports Complex for the 2022 and 2023 baseball seasons. The Midwest Moos are a part
of the Kansas Collegiate Baseball League.

A new development, Stonebrook Division is under construction at 19" Avenue and Bliss Street will
provide multi-family housing.

In 2020, the City completed a sale of 65% share in the City’s transmission assetso GridLiance GP,
LLC. The move is expected to aid the City in technical expertise and an able capital partner to
complete mandated and other necessary electric transmission asset improvements. The proceeds
of the sale have been directly input back into the system upgrades. The City will continue to provide
maintenance for the entire system and is being reimbursed by GridLiance, LLP for such work as
well as an annual franchise payment from GridLiance to the City. In 2020 and 2021, the two
completed approximately $4.2M and $5M, respectively, in improvements with the City responsible
for 35% of those costs. Those costs will be directly recovered through applicable transmission zonal
charges to customers in the Southwest Power Pool. The City and GridLiance have made significant
reliability upgrades to the electric transmission system in both 2021, 2022 and into 2023.

The City is currently operating from a 1.5 year planning process aimed at determining the direction
from the public for policies, programs and services. That planning process was completed in 2020.
The City expects to continue to make progress under the new Comprehensive Plan and looks to
update the plan in 2024 with a community update process.



e The most recent Standard & Poor's Rating Services affirmed its 'A+' long-term rating on Winfield,
Kansas' General Obligation (GO) bonds, based on improved general fund balance levels, strong
management team, and strong liquidity.

o The City continued its sidewalk and other infrastructure improvements, related to ADA compliance.

Certificate of Achievement and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Winfield for its annual
comprehensive financial report for the year ended December 31, 2022. This was the 25th consecutive year
that the City has received this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This report must satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current annual
comprehensive financial report continues to meet the certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the assistance of numerous
persons both in and out of local government. The firm of Loyd Group, LLC provided independent audit
services. Specific appreciation is expressed to the dedicated staff of the City accounting department. We
would also like to thank members of the other City departments who assisted and contributed to this report.
Finally, preparation of this report would not be possible without the support of the City Commission. We
express special appreciation to them for their leadership in planning and conducting the financial operations
of the City in a professional, responsible, and progressive manner in the best interests of the residents of
Winfield.

Respectfully submitted,

e N 17~ %M% Skl

Taggart Wall Tania Richardson Melissa Schooley
City Manager City Clerk City Treasurer
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Galva, KS 67443

620-654-7565

LOYD GROUP, LLC www.loyd-group.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Winfield, Kansas 67019

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of Winfield, Kansas (City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Winfield’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of
Winfield, as of December 31, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Special Streets and
Highway Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the Kansas Municipal Audit and Accounting Guide. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of City of Winfield, and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

City of Winfield’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of Winfield’s ability to continue
as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes

D. Scot Loyd, cpa, CGFM, CFE, CGMA, CNC

“Creating Maneuverability in Government”



our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Winfield’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about City of Winfield's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability
— Healthcare, Schedule of the Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll -
Healthcare, Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability — KPERS Death and Disability, Schedule of
the Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll - KPERS Death and Disability,
Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, Schedule of City’s Contributions,
and the notes to the required supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise City of Winfield’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining and

individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section as listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
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The introductory section, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical
section as listed in the table of contents are the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, introductory
section, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section as listed
in the table of contents is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

Other Information Included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial report.
The other information comprises the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Transmission schedules
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the financial
statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we
are required to describe it in our report.

Loyd Group, LLC

Loyd Group, LLC
Galva, KS
June 21, 2024
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2023

As management for the City of Winfield, Kansas (the City) we offer readers of the City's financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2023. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

Finances for this City are multifaceted and quite complex. As such, management desires for this narrative
to be informative beyond what is seen on the face of the statements and to discuss the financial activities
of the City. We hope you find these comments helpful as you read through them.

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflow of resources for the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $77.449 million (net position). Of this amount, a
positive $624 thousand (unrestricted net position) is the balance.

The City’s total net position in business activities and governmental activities increased by $4.897 million
during the fiscal year. Governmental net position increased 3% and business activities net position
increased 10%.

At the close of 2023, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $20.693
million. There is a positive $1.283 million of unassigned Fund Balance.

At the close of 2023, the City's primary operating fund, the general fund, had a balance of $1.97 million, a
marked increased balance performance over five years.

At the close of 2023, the City’s total long-term debt for governmental activities increased $7.22 million. At
the close of 2023, the City’s total long-term debt for business activities decreased $3.194 million. The new
long-term debt is related to building infrastructure improvements at the new voter approved public safety
center-reflecting the issuance of sales tax supported debt for a new police station facility. The bulk
remaining of the increase is related to pension liability. The City continues to make payments on existing
debt. The fund balance in the Bond and Interest Fund increased to $4.698 million in 2022 from $1.534million
in 2022—$2.9 million of which accounts for debt held for construction of the police facility. Excepting that
amount, fund balance increased from $1.534 million to $1.798 million.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The City's financial report consists of the following sections:

¢ Management Discussion and Analysis;

e The basic financial statements, which include the government-wide and the fund financial
statements, along with the notes to the basic financial statements;

¢ Combining and individual statements and schedules for non-major funds; and,

e Statistical section

The basic financial statements of the City include the government-wide financial statements and the fund
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements follow the basic financial statements and are
essential for the reader's understanding of the financial statements. Other supplementary information,
including the statistical section, is also included at the end of this report to provide additional context and
information for the reader.

Government-wide financial statements present the results of the City's operations using the accrual

basis of accounting, the basis of accounting used by private-sector businesses. These statements focus
on the long-term financial picture of the City as a whole.
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The statement of net position reports all the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the two reported as net position. Net position is
an important measure of the City’s overall financial health. The increases and decreases in net position can
be monitored to determine whether the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities shows how the City’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.
The unique feature of this statement is how it shows the revenues and expenses related to specific
programs and how much of the programs were supported by the general taxes of the City. Since this
statement is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, all revenues and expenses are included,
regardless of when cash is received.

Both statements show the operations of the City broken down by governmental activities and business-type
activities. Governmental activities are the operations of the City generally supported by taxes, such as
public works, public safety, parks, land management, and general administration. Business-type activities
are operations of the City that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges. These consist of the five utilities the City operates: electric, natural gas, water,
wastewater, and storm water along with the Quail Ridge Golf Course.

Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City’s government. These statements report
the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. These funds are divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds financial statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become measurable and
available, and expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, except for long-term
debt and other similar items, which are recorded when due. The focus, therefore, is on the short-term
financial picture of the operations reported rather than the City as a whole. Most of the City's basic
operations are reported in the Governmental Fund financial statements. The information reported in these
statements can be compared to the governmental activities information in the government-wide statements.
The reconciliation at the end of the fund financial statements details the relationship between the two types
of financial statements.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund and capital projects fund, all of which are
major funds. Data from the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form
of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds are used by the City to account for activities that operate like commercial enterprises
found in the private sector. Funds that charge fees for services provided to outside customers including
other local governments are called enterprise funds. These funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Funds that charge fees
for services provided to departments within the reporting government are known as internal service funds.
Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting; thus, the only reconciling items needed between the
government-wide financial statements for business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial
statements relate to the elimination of internal service fund activity and capital asset ownership transfers.

The City has nine enterprise funds: Electric Transmission Fund, Electric Fund, Natural Gas Fund, Water

Fund, Wastewater Fund, Natural Gas Loan Fund, Advance Metering Infrastructure Fund, Refuse Fund, and
the Quail Ridge Golf Course Fund. The City has two internal service funds: Management Services Fund,
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and Operational Services Fund. The Electric Transmission Fund, Electric Fund, Natural Gas Fund, Water
Fund, Wastewater Fund, Natural Gas Loan Fund, and Advance Metering Infrastructure Fund are the only
ones considered major for presentation purposes.

Fiduciary funds are used by the City to account for resources held by the City for the benefit of a third
party. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements, since the resources
of those funds are not available to support the City’s operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to obtain a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes described above, this
report also contains required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its
obligation to provide postemployment benefits to its employees and supplementary information regarding
non-major funds have been included to give the reader greater context of the information provided.
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Analysis of the Government-Wide Financial Statements

Analysis of net position

As indicated earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial condition.
For the City, assets plus deferred outflows exceeded liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources by $77.449
million at the close of the current fiscal year. The City's net position increased by $4.897 million from the
prior year, with business-type activities accounting for a increase of $3.171 million and governmental
activities increasing by 1.726 million. The City expects net position to improve long term as the removal of
liabilities—particularly those from Winter Storm Uri (natural gas loan)-- outpace remaining life and value of
assets.

City of Winfield
Net Position
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Current and other assets $ 29,679,585 $§ 23,835589 $24,992,382 $26,895505 $ 54,671,967 $ 50,731,094
Capital assets 47,506,655 42,521,429 45,545,202 41,835,443 93,051,857 84,356,872

Total assets 77,186,240 66,357,018 70,537,584 68,730,948 147,723,824 135,087,966
Deferred Outflow s 2,934,555 3,476,665 2,062,952 2,601,111 4,997,507 6,077,776
Long-term liabilities 36,591,418 29,406,450 22,809,432 25,929,252 59,400,850 55,335,702
Other liabilities 4,163,631 2,865,371 4,053,453 3,838,672 8,217,084 6,704,043

Total liabilities 40,755,049 32,271,821 26,862,885 29,767,924 67,617,934 62,039,745
Deferred Inflow s 6,939,172 6,110,897 714,953 463,190 7,654,125 6,574,087
Net position:
Net investment in

Capital Assets 24,956,686 22,376,111 33,098,515 31,066,452 58,055,201 53,442,563

Restricted for:

Capital Projects 299,175 453,106 180,210 287,825 479,385 740,931

General Government 10,651,172 8,729,153 - - 10,651,172 8,729,153

Public Safety 1,089,190 1,055,901 - - 1,089,190 1,055,901

Health & Welfare 829,740 631,376 - - 829,740 631,376

Cultural & Recreation 141,342 183,891 - - 141,342 183,891

Economic Devel. 881,296 828,305 - - 881,296 828,305

Debt Service 4,698,144 1,534,511 - - 4,698,144 1,534,511
Unrestricted (deficit) (11,120,171) (4,341,389) 11,743,973 9,746,668 623,802 5,405,279

Total net position $ 32,426,574 $ 31,450,965 $45,022,698 $41,100,945 $ 77,449,272 $72,551,910

Assets increased by $12.64 million. Governmental Activities Assets increased $10.829 million. Business-
Type Activities Assets increased $1.807 million.

Liabilities increased by $5.578 million. Governmental Activities Liabilities increased $8.483. Business-Type
Activities Liabilities decreased $2.905 million.

Approximately 75 percent of the City’s net position reflect a net investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and construction work in process), less any
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently the capital assets are not available for future spending. This is a change from 74
percent the prior reporting period.
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Analysis of Changes in Net Position

The following table reflects the revenues and expenses for the City's activities for the year ended December
31, 2023, and illustrate the comparison between the current year, and the prior year:

City of Winfield
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
Revenues: 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Programrevenues:
Charges for services $ 3,261,468 $ 3,746,665 $41,474,720 $49,696,571 $44,736,188 $53,443,236
Operating grants and contributions 620,915 842,167 - - 620,915 842,167
Capital grants and contributions 265,425 911,306 - - 265,425 911,306
General revenues:
Property taxes 4,768,994 4,451,419 - - 4,768,994 4,451,419
Sales taxes 4,723,880 4,410,045 - - 4,723,880 4,410,045
Transient Guest Tax 94,917 78,727 - - 94,917 78,727
Alcohol Beverage Tax 90,591 95,731 - - 90,591 95,731
Investment Earnings 315,959 64,931 364,536 67,531 680,495 132,462
Total revenues 14,142,149 14,600,991 41,839,256 49,764,102 55,981,405 64,365,093
Expenses:
General government 2,343,071 1,283,831 - - 2,343,071 1,283,831
Public safety 6,909,631 6,359,890 - - 6,909,631 6,359,890
Public w orks 2,645,961 1,641,903 - - 2,645,961 1,641,903
Cemetery 237,271 197,299 - - 237,271 197,299
Culture and recreation 2,154,570 3,876,725 674,315 716,781 2,828,885 4,593,506
Health & w elfare 57,636 71,578 - - 57,636 71,578
Economic development 398,260 387,548 - - 398,260 387,548
Interest on long-term debt 772,259 521,973 - - 772,259 521,973
Electric - - 22,985,953 31,426,709 22,985,953 31,426,709
Electric Transmission - - 1,390,985 1,335,219 1,390,985 1,335,219
Natural Gas - - 4,129,979 4,939,431 4,129,979 4,939,431
Natural Gas loan - - 143,377 21,155 143,377 21,155
Advance Metering Infrastructure - - 979,276 771,875 979,276 771,875
Water - - 2,026,761 2,650,209 2,026,761 2,650,209
Wastew ater - - 1,877,050 1,742,786 1,877,050 1,742,786
Refuse - - 1,357,688 1,698,081 1,357,688 1,698,081
Total expenses 15,518,659 14,340,747 35,565,384 45,302,246 51,084,043 59,642,993
Change in net position before transfers (1,376,510) 260,244 6,273,872 4,461,856 4,897,362 4,722,100
Transfers 3,102,965 1,176,769 (3,102,965) (1,176,769) - -
Change in net position after transfers 1,726,455 1,437,013 3,170,907 3,285,087 4,897,362 4,722,100
Net position, beginning 31,450,965 30,013,952 41,100,945 37,815,858 72,551,910 67,829,810
Prior period adjustment (750,846) - 750,846 - - -
Net position, ending $32,426,574 $31,450,965 $45,022,698 $41,100,945 $77,449,272 $72,551,910
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The City’s net position in governmental activities increased $1.726 million. The chart below illustrates how
the City's various governmental activities program revenue vs. program expenses fared in 2023.
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General Government

e Public safety activities continue to represent the largest governmental activity expense, $6.909
million, or 44% percent of the City’s total governmental activity expenses. Public safety expenses
include police, fire, ambulance, building inspection and public parking services provided by the City.
These expenses decreased in 2022, largely attributed one-time expenses in facility construction
for fire and EMS in the prior reporting period. This will continue to be reflected in out years as
construction continues for the fire/EMS facility and then on the police facility. Inflationary impact to
vehicles and equipment capital expenses will continue to affect this activity and will require
monitoring.

Public Safety Public Works

Cemetery Culture and Recreation Economic I

Health & Welfare Interest on Debt

Development

mRevenue M Expenses

e Culture and recreation activities account for $2.155 million, or about 13.88% percent of the total
governmental activity expenses. This activity includes the Aquatic Center, parks maintenance and
the recreation operations at the City of Winfield Lake, the Broadway Sports Complex, and the
Winfield Fairgrounds.

e Public works activities account for $2.645 million, or about 17% of the total governmental activity
expenses. This activity primarily includes the street pavement maintenance program. This item
ebbs and flows as project awards are made in conjunction with outside partners such as the Kansas
Department of Transportation.

e General government activities account for $2.343 million, or 15% of the total governmental activity
expenses. This activity includes cost not directly attributable to any other category such as street
lights, property insurance, management services, etc. Reclassifications of certain administrative
and increases in insurance costs reflect a rise in this number for 2023.
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The next chart illustrates the City's overall program and general revenues for governmental activities in
2023.

Major sources of revenue in governmental activities continue to be property, sales, and other taxes as
illustrated in the graph.
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e Property taxes totaled $4.768million, or 34% of the City’'s governmental activities revenues. This
continues to be consistent with long term trends of support by taxes for these activities. These
revenues increased in the period due to inflationary pressures on the expenditure side.

e Charges for services totaled $3.261 million or 23% of the City’s governmental activities revenues.
These fees can essentially be summarized into four categories: community development, cemetery
services, parks and recreation, and emergency medical services. These revenues decreased $475
thousand, with a significant amount of that decrease attributed to a reduction in outdoor recreation
with the ongoing 2022-2023 drought. The City annually reviews charges for services and adjusts
based on market demand and service delivery costs.

e Sales taxes totaled $4.724 million, or 33% of the City’s governmental activities revenues. Budgetary
basis reflects a 7% increase in sales tax receipts for the City. The City has a 1% general sales tax.
1/2 of that tax is dedicated to Capital Projects and is recorded and tracked separately from the
General Fund. The other 1/2 is used for general government services to help keep property taxes
down.

In 2020, the City began an additional 1% sales tax for capital improvements. For the year 2023,

6/10 of one cent went toward the public safety center construction project and 4/10 of one cent
went to the Consolidated Street and Highway Fund.
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e Capital grants and contributions totaled $265 thousand or 2% of the City’s governmental activities
revenues. These revenues include private and public contributions including federal and state
grants for public safety equipment, various park improvements, and for public works street
improvement projects.

Business-type Activities

The City operates six utilities and a municipal golf course. Combined, the transmission, electric and gas
utilities comprise 78% of the total business-type activity charges.

The City's net position related to business-type activities increased by $3.922 million from the prior year.
Contributing factors to this change is the decrease in energy charges that occurred in the period. The
utilities remain to see a need for monitoring the ability to cover shared costs with governmental activities as
well as future equipment and capital expenses.
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Highlights in the business-type activities area include:

* The Electric Fund had revenues of $24.559 million, an decrease attributed to decreased energy
costs on the Southwest Power Pool Integrated Market. Lower energy costs were related to more
balanced load across the Southwest Power Pool and a reliance on natural gas generation which
was operating in a lower market position. Accordingly, expenses were $22.986 million. The
budgetary basis reflected an increase in available cash by 2.3 million . This was due to a change
in rate structures and lower energy costs on the market allowing for lagging payments from 2022
to be received in 2023.

e The Natural Gas Fund had revenues of $5.403 million, a decrease attributed to the fall in the market
costs of natural gas for resale to customers. Accordingly, expenses were $4.129 million. Budgetary
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basis revenues exceeded expenditures due to the timing of inflow to accommodate purchased
natural gas on the market during the last two months of 2022.

¢ The Water Fund had revenues of $3.149 million, which increased $40 thousand from the prior year
mainly attributed to increased sales. Expenses were $3.111 million, also increased from the prior
year and attributed to increased costs in materials and supplies for normal operating including
chemicals and pipe. Budgetary basis revenues exceeded expenses were more than expenses by
$75 thousand.

e The Wastewater Fund had revenues of $2.346 million, which was an increase of $82 thousand.
Expenses were $1.877 million, about $130 thousand more than the prior year. Budgetary revenues
exceeded expenses by $391 thousand.

e The Refuse Fund had revenues of $1.818 million. Expenses were $1.358 million, reflecting the
purchase and financing of capital for a refuse truck. Budgetary revenues were more than expenses
by $387 thousand.

e The Quail Ridge Golf Course Fund had revenues of $447 thousand, which was an increase of $1
thousand over the prior year. The primary factor for the revenue increase was favorable weather
inducing increased play and the adjustment of rates. The City continues working to move toward
more event play to help recover gap losses in the future. The main resource for this fund is transfers
in from other funds, which offset the difference between revenues and expenses. Expenses for
2023 were $674 thousand—down from prior years.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the City's
financing requirements. Unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the City's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of governmental funds reports by the
City include the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital project funds.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund
balance was $1.965 million, increase compared to the prior year and a marked increase over five years by
30%. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare the budgetary basis
unencumbered available fund balance, increased to $1.301 million, to total general fund expenditures. This
comparison represents 13% of total general fund expenditures of $9.765 million.

The total revenue in the general fund was $9.869 million, an increase by 400 thousand. This change is
mostly reflected in a change of sales and property taxes to the fund as well as a reduction in transfers to
the fund from the proprietary funds.

The total expenditures in the general fund were $9.765 million, an increase of 80 thousand. This increase

is nominal and related to inflationary trends The City continues to monitor expenditures through a quarterly
management review with each operating area in addition to monthly internal reviews.
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Debt Service Fund

At the end of 2023, the balance of this fund moved to $4.698 million from $1.534million in 2022—$2.9
million of which accounts for debt held for construction of the police facility. Excepting that amount, fund
balance increased from $1.534 million to $1.798 million. This balance is restricted for the payment of future
debt and expected to grow as revenues exceed expenditures in future years. The City has made concerted
efforts toward this point.

The fund is expected to continue to acquire fund balance that will be used to offset the refunding of current
debt in 2025 and 2026.

Advanced Metering Infrastructure Fund

This fund is used to separately account for temporary note and long term indebtedness related expenditures
to accommodate the upgrade of metering system for utilities. The fund reflects nominal expenditures as the
project continues to be underway and is facing supply chain restraints. The project is expected to continue
into 2024 and was financed through the issuance of long term debt—which is expected to close the fund
for accounting purposes.

Special Streets and Highway Fund

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance was $2.244 million, an increase of $481 thousand
over the prior year. This balance is not restricted to uses related to streets as it is largely funded by a
general sales tax that the City elected to allocate to the fund beginning in 2021. The City realized increase
balance in the fund due to strong sales tax receipts of 7% in the positive. Annually, the City completes a
pavement analysis to determine the best application of dollars for long term asset impact.

Expenditures in this fund occur as projects become ready for construction. Increased street maintenance
occurred in 2022 including work on 5™ Ave.

Public Safety Needs Study Fund

The fund balance of $2.767 million and related revenues and expenses in the fund are related to a facilities
project the City has undertaken. Prior to 2019, when a sales tax referendum was approved with 89% voter
approval for the project, the City completed necessary study demonstrating the need for improved facilities
and later demolition on existing facilities. In 2020, the City began construction on a new public safety facility.
The project is slated to occur in four phases:

Phase | Demolition/Study

Phase Il Fire/EMS Addition

Phase Il Police Facility/Shared Training Facility
Phase IV Renovation of Existing Fire Station

The second phase was completed in the fall of 2022 and financed by bonds issued in conjunction with the
project in 2020. Phase 3 of the project is in design/engineering and was bid for construction in late 2023
and expected to be completed in 2024. Phase 4 of the project was started early and will be paid for without
borrowing. No major cost overruns are expected. Sales tax receipts are more than expected and other
monies in the fund balance are related to applicable bond proceeds to finance the construction of the facility.

Expenditures in this fund occur as the project is constructed. As the bond proceeds balance is drawn down,

sales tax dollars will be transferred into the fund to cover expenditures as is reflected in the reduction of
fund balance for 2023.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2023

Capital Projects Fund

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance in the major capital project funds was $2.057
million, an increase of $350 thousand compared to the prior year all of which is restricted for future capital
projects. The completes an annual planning process setting priorities for the use of the funds into general
areas of improvement or to specific projects.

The total revenue was $1.289 million. The largest financing source to these funds is a direct revenue from
sales tax for the %2 cent sales tax attributable to capital projects/equipment.

The total expenditures were $431 thousand, a decrease from the previous fiscal year. Expenditures in this
fund occur as projects become ready for construction.

Other governmental funds (Combined)

This grouping is the summation of all other special revenue funds. These funds are not considered major
funds, so the detail on each specific fund can be found in the section titled, "Combining Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds".

At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balances in all other governmental funds was $4.286
million, a decrease of $1.938 thousand compared to the prior year. The contributing factor to this increase
is the ongoing accruing of funds and releasing of funds towards the planned other specific capital
improvements/construction.

The total revenue was $2.985 million. The total expenditures were $2.420 million. Transfers out made up
the bulk of the fund balance change with most of that a change in location funds related to the public safety
center.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements, but for our business type activities. The funds listed below are the City’s major proprietary
funds:

The electric transmission fund was established in 2020. The electric transmission fund had a total net
position of $2.684 million at the end of the current fiscal year. This fund supports the maintenance and
capital improvements of the electric transmission system. The system is owned 65%/35% with GridLiance
High Plains, a Nextera Energy Company as the majority holder. The City completes all the operations and
maintenance and is reimbursed for those expenditures by the ownership. Additional revenue source for the
fund comes from the return on investment that is allowed through the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission formula rates established.

The electric fund had a total net position of $20.824 million at the end of the current fiscal year. This is an
increase from the prior year reflecting a higher amount of cash on hand primarily due to the favorable
energy markets.

The natural gas fund had a total net position of $7.229 million at the end of the current fiscal year. This is a
increase from the prior year of 737 thousand and largely reflects the change in accounts payable due to
the change in market prices at the end of current and prior year.

The water fund had a total net position of $5.948 million at the end of the current fiscal year. This is an

increase of $645 thousand from the previous year—a decrease in materials and supplies due to large
project expenses in the prior year.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2023

The wastewater fund had a total net position of $9.057 million at the end of the current fiscal year. This is
an increase of $135 thousand from the previous year, attributed to increasing available cash assets.

Fiduciary Funds

The City maintains three fiduciary funds: Payroll Clearing, Sales Tax, and Flexible Medical.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The following graph illustrates the City’s General Fund Revenues against Expenditures for fiscal years
ended 2014 through 2023:

As this graph illustrates, the City has had revenues more than expenditures nine of the last ten years. The
City will need to continue monitoring expenditures as compared to stable growth with respect to assessed
valuations, which allow for no measurable increase in property tax received. To combat flat property tax
receipts, the City will need to review expenditures and likely identify user fee adjustments or ways to
promote local sales tax receipts. Increases in franchise charges to utilities may need to be reviewed and
adjusted upward to offset as necessary.

12,000,000

10,000,000 M o

8,000,000

6,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

—REVENUES e fXpenses

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December
31, 2023, amounts to $93.052million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, intangibles,
vehicles, roads, water lines, sewer lines, natural gas lines and electric lines.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2023

City of Winfield Capital Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Land $ 2,155,216 $ 2,155,216 $ 830777 $ 830,777 $ 2985993 $ 2,985,993
Buildings 18,390,358 15,350,467 12,735,437 12,848,518 31,125,795 28,198,985
Improvements 37,434,941 37,198,396 71,857,992 66,198,074 109,292,933 103,396,470
Machinery & Equipment 11,145,187 10,806,481 29,914,833 29,392,040 41,060,020 40,198,521
Less Accumulated Deprec. (25,063,793) (23,489,848) (72,941,308) (71,011,030) (98,005,101) (94,500,878)
Lease Assets 3,997,559 939,014 2,154,623 1,858,938 6,152,182 2,797,952
Less Accumulated Amort. (552,813) (438,297) (657,622) (346,199) (1,210,435) (784,496)
Construction in Process - - 1,650,470 2,064,325 1,650,470 2,064,325
Total $ 47,506,655 $ 42,521,429 $ 45,545,202 $ 41,835,443 $ 93,051,857 $ 84,356,872

For additional information on capital assets, see Note 4 to the Basic Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At the end of 2023, the City had a total long-term debt outstanding of $63.446 million. Of this amount,
$28.860 million was general obligation debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City—a reduction of
2.2 million in 2023. Of that, $10.549 was general obligation debt that is supported by business activities.

City of Winfield Outstanding Debt

Activities Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

General Obligation $18,311,258 $19,900,786  $ 10,548,742 $11,179,214  $ 28,860,000  $ 31,080,000
Leases 3,478,300 674,239 1,674,758 1,651,046 5,153,058 2,325,285
State of KS Loan - - 4,576,940 6,824,922 4,576,940 6,824,922
Note payable 5,800,000 - - - 5,800,000 -
Interlocal Agreement 148,000 - - - 148,000 -
Compensated Absences 347,243 344,090 462,898 453,593 810,141 797,683
Net Premium on GO Bonds 760,411 820,941 223,189 238,068 983,600 1,059,009
Net OPEB Obligation 950,024 904,541 1,331,814 1,274,491 2,281,838 2,179,032
Net Pension Obligation 8,935,690 8,865,694 5,897,136 6,288,158 14,832,826 15,153,852

Total $ 38,730,926 $31,510,291 $24,715477  $27,909,492 $63,446,403 $59,419,783

The City's long-term debt increased due to a temporary not issuance to accommodate the construction of

the long-planned police facility.

The City was assigned an "A+" rating from Standard & Poor's in 2023. Recent issuances have been placed

at local private financial institutions.

For additional information on debt administration, see Note 5 to the Basic Financial Statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the reader with a general overview of the City’s finances.
Questions or requests for more information concerning any of the information provided in this report should
be directed to Finance Department, City of Winfield, 200 E 9th Ave, Winfield, KS 67156.
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Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Property taxes
Special assessment taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise fees
Lease receivable
Trade accounts, net
Internal balances
Advances from fiduciary type funds
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Investment in joint venture
Other investments
Restricted assets
Land held for resale
Capital assets:
Land
Construction work in progress
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Lease equipment
Less accumulated amortization

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB healthcare
Deferred outflows related to OPEB KPERS

Deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll payable
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred inflows for property taxes receivable
Deferred inflows for grant receivable
Deferred inflows for lease receivable
Deferred inflows unearned revenue
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to OPEB healthcare
Deferred inflows related to OPEB KPERS

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital improvements
General government
Public safety
Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Economic development
Unrestricted

Total net position

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2023

Primary Government

Business
Governmental Type Component

Activities Activities Total units
$ 21,087,471 § 17,069,756 38,157,227 § 851,418
4,734,460 - 4,734,460 -
1,010,882 - 1,010,882 -
351,330 - 351,330 -
25,213 - 25,213 -
1,408,453 - 1,408,453 -
318,468 4,851,527 5,169,995 219,502
20,266 (20,266) - -
- 2,823,320 2,823,320 4,463
12,790 19,113 31,903 38,949
- 56,765 56,765 R
- 11,957 11,957 -
- 180,210 180,210 16,943
710,252 - 710,252 -
2,155,216 830,777 2,985,993 52,776
- 1,650,470 1,650,470 -
18,390,358 12,735,437 31,125,795 5,219,226
37,434,941 71,857,992 109,292,933 -
11,145,187 29,914,833 41,060,020 295,749
(25,063,793) (72,941,308) (98,005,101) (2,998,680)
3,997,559 2,154,623 6,152,182 18,171
(552,813) (657,622) (1,210,435) (6,057)
77,186,240 70,537,584 147,723,824 3,712,460
2,764,346 1,824,338 4,588,684 129,679
163,806 229,637 393,443 11,634
6,403 8,977 15,380 470
2,934,555 2,062,952 4,997,507 141,783
1,706,287 182,391 1,888,678 53,991
126,541 1,866,626 1,993,167 17,927
191,295 98,391 289,686 -
2,139,508 1,906,045 4,045,553 7,857
36,591,418 22,809,432 59,400,850 518,102
40,755,049 26,862,885 67,617,934 597,877
4,734,460 - 4,734,460 -
- - - 215,812
1,363,158 - 1,363,158 -
- 652 652 -
627,361 414,028 1,041,389 13,721
86,379 121,093 207,472 5,906
127,814 179,180 306,994 8,186
6,939,172 714,953 7,654,125 243,625
24,956,686 33,098,515 58,055,201 2,568,951
4,698,144 - 4,698,144 -
299,175 180,210 479,385 215,812
10,651,172 - 10,651,172 5,785
1,089,190 - 1,089,190 -
829,740 - 829,740 -
141,342 - 141,342 -
881,296 - 881,296 -
(11,120,171) 11,743,973 623,802 222,193
$ 32,426,574 $ 45,022,698 77,449,272 § 3,012,741

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works/stormwater
Cemetery
Culture and recreation
Health and welfare
Economic development
Interest on long-term debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Electric Utility
Electric Transmission
Gas Utility
Water Utility
Wastewater Utility
Natural Gas Loan
Advance Metering Infrastructure
Refuse
Quail Ridge Golf Course

Total Business-Type Activities

Component Units:
Winfield Housing Authority

Total Component Units

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges Grants Grants Business
for and and Governmental Type Component
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
$ 2,343,071 $ 837,398 $ -3 - (1,505,673) $ - 8 (1,505,673) $ -
6,909,631 782,103 - 227,103 (5,900,425) - (5,900,425) -
2,645,961 299,459 616,783 38,322 (1,691,397) - (1,691,397) -
237,271 67,300 - - (169,971) - (169,971) -
2,154,570 736,378 4,132 - (1,414,060) - (1,414,060) -
57,636 538,830 - - 481,194 - 481,194 -
398,260 - - - (398,260) - (398,260) -
772,259 - - - (772,259) - (772,259) -
$ 15,518,659 $ 3,261,468 $ 620,915 $ 265,425 (11,370,851) - (11,370,851) -
$ 22,985,953 $ 24,559,222 $ -3 - - 1,673,269 1,673,269 -
1,390,985 2,558,639 - - - 1,167,654 1,167,654
4,129,979 5,403,577 - - - 1,273,598 1,273,598 -
2,026,761 3,149,050 - - - 1,122,289 1,122,289 -
1,877,050 2,345,776 - - - 468,726 468,726 -
143,377 1,192,645 - - - 1,049,268 1,049,268 -
979,276 - - - - (979,276) (979,276) -
1,357,688 1,818,881 - - - 461,193 461,193 -
674,315 446,930 - - - (227,385) (227,385) -
$ 35,565,384 $ 41,474,720 $ - $ - - 5,909,336 5,909,336 -
393,379 195,205 69,788 120,410 - - - (7.976)
$ 1,055,121 $ 202,386 $ 150,940 $ 120,410 - - - (581,385)
General Revenues and Transfers:
General Revenues:
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes 4,114,041 - 4,114,041 -
Debt service 654,953 - 654,953 -
Sales taxes 4,723,880 - 4,723,880 -
Transient guest taxes 94,917 - 94,917 -
Alcohol beverage taxes 90,591 - 90,591 -
Payment from City of Winfield - - - 548,305
Investment earnings 315,959 364,536 680,495 7,489
Transfers in (out) 3,102,965 (3,102,965) - -
Total general revenues and transfers 13,097,306 (2,738,429) 10,358,877 555,794
Change in net position 1,726,455 3,170,907 4,897,362 (25,591)
Net position at beginning of year 31,450,965 41,100,945 72,551,910 3,038,332
Prior period adjustment (Note 22) (750,846) 750,846 - -
Net position at beginning of year, restated 30,700,119 41,851,791 72,551,910 3,038,332
Net position at end of year 32,426,574 $ 45,022,698 $ 77,449,272 $ 3,012,741
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
December 31, 2023

Other Total
Debt Capital Special Streets  Public Safety =~ Governmental ~Governmental
General Service Improvements and Highway Needs Study Funds Funds
Assets:
Cash and short-term investments $1,771,750 $ 4,528,167 $ 2,003,914 §$ 2,773,426 $ 5337344 $ 4,672,870 $ 21,087,471
Property taxes receivable 3,456,615 564,263 - - - 713,582 4,734,460
Prepaid sales tax - - - - - 12,790 12,790
Special assessment taxes receivable 120,086 890,796 - - - - 1,010,882
Due from other funds 20,265 183,277 - - - - 203,542
Accounts receivable, net 212,807 2,478,495 - 28,598 - 77,063 2,796,963
Franchise fees receivable 25,213 - - - - - 25,213
Sales tax receivable 112,125 - 79,735 63,788 - 95,682 351,330
Land held for resale - - - - - 710,252 710,252
Total assets $5,718,861 $ 8,644,998 $ 2,083,649 $ 2,865,812 $ 5337344 § 6,282,239 § 30,932,903
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 61,300 $ 13,300 $ 26,684 $ -3 510,191 $ 1,094,811 $ 1,706,286
Accrued payroll 115,790 - - 6,624 - 4,127 126,541
Due to other funds - - - - - 183,277 183,277
Total liabilities 177,090 13,300 26,684 6,624 510,191 1,282,215 2,016,104
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Property taxes receivable 3,456,615 564,263 - - - 713,582 4,734,460
Special assesment taxes receivable 120,086 890,796 - - - - 1,010,882
Intergovernmental - 2,478,495 - - - - 2,478,495
Total deferred inflows of resources 3,576,701 3,933,554 - - - 713,582 8,223,837
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable - - - - - 6,281 6,281
Restricted:
Debt service - 4,698,144 - - - - 4,698,144
General government - - - - - 606,253 606,253
Public safety - - - - - 1,089,190 1,089,190
Stormwater drainage improvements - - - - - 791,840 791,840
Recreation - - - - - 141,342 141,342
Health and welfare - - - - - 37,900 37,900
Economic development - - - - - 881,296 881,296
Levee maintenance - - - - - 26,006 26,006
Street improvements - - - - - 299,175 299,175
Equipment acquisitions - - 2,056,965 2,859,188 4,827,153 275,607 10,018,913
Committed: -
Water quality improvements - - - - - 365,688 365,688
Fairgrounds improvements - - - - - 287,750 287,750
Cemetery improvements - - - - - 52,785 52,785
Assigned:
Capital projects - - - - - 107,164 107,164
Unassigned 1,965,070 - - - - (681,835) 1,283,235
Total fund balances 1,965,070 4,698,144 2,056,965 2,859,188 4,827,153 4,286,442 20,692,962
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
and fund balances $5,718,861 $ 8,644,998 $ 2,083,649 $ 2,865,812 $ 5337344 § 6,282,239 § 30,932,903

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
To Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2023

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets and right-to-use (lease) assets used in governmental
activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported

in the funds (capital assets net of accumulated depreciation):
Cost
Accumulated depreciation/amortization

Other assets not available to pay for current period expenditures

and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:
Special assessments taxes receivable
Lease receivable

Certain items, which result in a consumption of net
assets applicable to a future reporting period, are
recognized as deferred outflows of resources in
government-wide financial statements:

Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:
Accrued interest payable on general obligation bonds
Compensated absences payable
Lease obligations payable
General obligation bonds payable
Notes payable
Unamortized premium on sale of general obligation bonds
Interlocal agreement payable
Net pension liability payable
Total death & disability liability payable
Total OPEB liability payable

Certain items, which result in an acquisition of net
assets applicable to a future reporting period, are
recognized as deferred inflows of resources in
government-wide financial statements:

Deferred inflows related to pensions
Deferred inflows related to OPEB
Deferred inflows related to leases

Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of
certain activities to individual funds. The accumulated
equity for the governmental fund types is reported
on the statement of net position as internal balances

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

73,123,261
(25,616,606)

191,295
347,243
3,478,300
18,311,258
5,800,000
760,411
148,000
8,935,690
77,935

872,089

$ 20,692,962

47,506,655

1,010,882
1,408,453

2,764,346
170,209

(38,922,221)

(627,361)
(214,193)
(1,363,158)

$ 32,426,574
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Other Total
Debt Capital Special Streets Public Safety Governmental Governmental
General Service  Improvements and Highway  Needs Study Funds Funds
Revenues:
Property taxes $3,408,482 $ 654,953 $ - $ - % - $ 705559 $ 4,768,994
Sales taxes 1,157,436 - 1,188,815 951,052 - 1,426,577 4,723,880
Special assessment taxes - 172,384 - - - - 172,384
Franchise taxes 108,201 - - - - - 108,201
Intergovernmental 568,890 - - 616,784 - 191,404 1,377,078
Licenses and permits 105,246 - - - - - 105,246
Charges for services 1,539,935 - - - - 328,991 1,868,926
Fines and forfeitures 66,811 - - - - - 66,811
Use of money and property 191,951 34,198 38,922 50,704 27,608 203,824 547,207
Miscellaneous 50,003 294,566 61,478 3,233 - 128,218 537,498
Total revenues 7,196,955 1,156,101 1,289,215 1,621,773 27,608 2,984,573 14,276,225
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 225,186 - - - - 395,673 620,859
Public safety 6,544,691 - - - 2,825,591 302,464 9,672,746
Public works - - - 1,055,406 106,486 913,240 2,075,132
Culture and recreation 1,761,936 - - - - 679,813 2,441,749
Health and welfare 31,200 - - - - 26,436 57,636
Economic development 269,616 - - - - 59,303 328,919
Cemetery 183,655 - - - - 42,920 226,575
Capital improvements - - 247,702 51,979 - - 299,681
Debt service 46,581 2,298,769 183,579 56,047 - - 2,584,976
Total expenditures 9,062,865 2,298,769 431,281 1,163,432 2,932,077 2,419,849 18,308,273
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under) expenditures (1,865,910) (1,142,668) 857,934 458,341 (2,904,469) 564,724 (4,032,048)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from lease obligation - - - - - - -
Issuance of debt - 5,800,000 - - - - 5,800,000
Premium on bond issue - - - - - - -
Transfers in 2,648,035 1,347,611 58,300 350,000 5,221,519 192,244 9,817,709
Transfers out (458,150)  (2,841,310) (565,919) (193,161) - (2,694,760)  (6,753,300)
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,189,885 4,306,301 (507,619) 156,839 5,221,519  (2,502,516) 8,864,409
Net change in fund balances 323,975 3,163,633 350,315 615,180 2,317,050  (1,937,792) 4,832,361
Fund balances, beginning year 1,641,095 1,534,511 1,706,650 2,244,008 2,510,103 6,224,234 15,860,601
Fund balances, end of year $1,965,070 $ 4,698,144 $ 2,056,965 $ 2,859,188 $ 4,827,153 §$ 4,286,442 $ 20,692,962

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 4,832,361
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:
Capital outlays $7,207,334
Depreciation (1,928,439)
Excess capital outlays over depreciation 5,278,895
Debt proceeds provide current financial resources for governmental funds but issuing
debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position for:
Lease obligations payable (3,247,545)
Note proceeds (5,800,000)
Interlocal agreement proceeds (185,000)
In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding debt, whereas in
governmental funds, an interest expenditure is reported when due. 15,349
In the statement of activities, the gain or loss from the disposition of capital assets is
reported, whereas in the governmental funds, only cash proceeds from the
sale increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net position differs from
the change in fund balance by the cost of the assets sold. (293,669)
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets:
General obligation bond payments 1,589,528
Lease obligation payments 443,484
Interlocal agreement payments 37,000
Total payments on long-term liabilities 2,070,012
In the statement of activities the deferred refunding costs increases deferred
outflows of resources but does not provide current resources to the governmental
funds. Amortization of the deferred refunding costs is reflected in the statement of
activities but is not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds:
Amortization of deferred refunding costs
Special assessments are not considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current
period. However, they are recognized as revenue in the statement of activities as soon
as the related improvements is completed and the special assessments are levied. 54,718
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the governmental
fund for long-term receivables (44,181)
Pension contributions is an expenditure in the governmental funds but reduces the net
pension liability in the statement of net position. Additionally, the effect of changes in
deferred outflows and inflows for pensions are only recorded in the statement of activities. (1,040,090)
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the funds.
Net Other Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (45,483)
Deferred inflows and outflows related to OPEB 2,279
Compensated absences payable (3,153)
Amortization of premium on issuance of general obligation bonds 60,530
Deferred inflows related to leases 71,432
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,726,455

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues:

Taxes

Property

Sales

Franchise
Intergovernmental
Licenses, fees and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous
Transfers in

Total revenues

Expenditures and encumbrances:
General government
Administrative/other
Cemetery maintenance
Public safety:
Police Department
Fire Department
EMS Department
Municipal Court
Parking
Culture and recreation:
City Lake
Park maintenance
Baden Square
Aquatic facility
Sports complex
Economic Development:
Community development
Transfers out

Total expenditures and encumbrances

Revenues over (under) expenditures
and encumbrances
Unencumbered cash, beginning of year

Unencumbered cash, end of year

Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Variance

Actual With Final

Amounts Budget

Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over

Original Final Basis (Under)
$ 3,505,289 $ 3,505,289 $§ 3,408,482 $ (96,807)
1,039,547 1,039,547 1,188,815 149,268
128,000 128,000 109,676 (18,324)
517,582 517,582 568,890 51,308
70,700 70,700 105,246 34,546
1,603,750 1,603,750 1,539,935 (63,815)
63,000 63,000 66,811 3,811
134,800 134,800 191,951 57,151
43,000 43,000 41,382 (1,618)
2,875,000 2,875,000 2,648,035 (226,965)
9,980,668 9,980,668 9,869,223 (111,445)
2,300,330 2,300,330 551,363 (1,748,967)
253,847 253,847 203,535 (50,312)
2,919,466 2,919,466 3,024,208 104,742
2,852,422 2,852,422 3,071,585 219,163
444,228 444,228 385,478 (58,750)
71,130 71,130 76,672 5,542
936 936 256 (680)
394,068 394,068 365,953 (28,115)
686,748 686,748 702,025 15,277
290,855 290,855 211,552 (79,303)
242,378 242,378 250,523 8,145
304,078 304,078 184,232 (119,846)
394,262 394,262 279,628 (114,634)
- - 458,150 458,150
11,154,748 11,154,748 9,765,160 (1,389,588)
(1,174,080) (1,174,080) 104,063 1,278,143
1,034,407 1,034,407 1,197,432 163,025
$ (139,673) $ (139,673) $ 1,301,495 § 1,441,168

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis
Special Streets and Highway Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Variance
Actual With Final
Amounts Budget
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Over
Original Final Basis (Under)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 507,950 $ 507,950 $ 616,784 $ 108,834
Taxes 800,000 800,000 951,052 151,052
Interest earnings - - 50,704 50,704
Miscellaneous 5,530 5,530 528 (5,002)
Transfers in 350,000 350,000 350,000 -
Total revenues 1,663,480 1,663,480 1,969,068 305,588
Expenditures and encumbrances:
Personal services 339,330 339,330 358,116 18,786
Contractual services 74,800 74,800 449 (74,351)
Commodities 154,005 154,005 111,171 (42,834)
Capital outlay 2,845,930 2,845,930 636,638 (2,209,292)
Principal - - 45,619 45,619
Interest - - 10,428 10,428
Transfer out 66,820 66,820 193,161 126,341
Total expenditures and encumbrances 3,480,885 3,480,885 1,355,582 (2,125,303)
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,817,405) (1,817,405) 613,486 2,430,891
Unencumbered cash, beginning of year 1,876,088 1,876,088 2,153,317 277,229
Unencumbered cash, end of year $ 58,683 $ 58,683 $ 2,766,803 $ 2,708,120
-32-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid insurance

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents restricted for:
Wastewater Utility improvements

Total current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Land
Buildings
Construction in process
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation (build & leasehold’

Lease assets
Less accumulated amortization

Property, plant and equipment, nef

Other Assets:
Advances to other funds
Investment in joint venture
Other investments

Total other assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB healthcare
Deferred outflows related to OPEB KPERS

Total deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2023

Governmental

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities

Advance Nonmajor Total Internal

Electric Electric Gas Water Wastewater Natural Gas Metering Enterprise Enterprise Service

Utility Transmission Utility Utility Utility Loan Infrastructure Funds Funds Funds

$ 7,151,728 $§ 3,090,871 1,825,450 $ 442,460 $ 1,600,502 $ 721,801 $ 263,744 § 749,867 $ 15,846,423 $ 1,223,333
2,470,177 223,598 1,104,455 320,730 175,224 356,314 - 142,084 4,792,582 58,945
1,965,212 46,325 429,343 196,879 29,318 - - 25,458 2,692,535 130,785
- - - - - - - - - 19,113
- - - - 180,210 - - - 180,210 -
11,587,117 3,360,794 3,359,248 960,069 1,985,254 1,078,115 263,744 917,409 23,511,750 1,432,176
382,366 - 6,303 8,801 23,355 - - 403,452 824,277 6,500
2,976,463 - - 1,209,573 5,857,389 - - 574,363 10,617,788 2,117,649
329,163 1,798 709,891 609,618 - - - - 1,650,470 -
26,776,983 9,655,866 6,536,505 11,807,051 14,181,695 - - 2,653,497 71,611,597 246,395
16,042,770 - 703,214 5,805,437 2,478,761 - - 2,749,852 27,780,034 2,134,799
(34,560,710) (822,866) (3,545,016) (11,397,795) (14,767,971) - - (4,482,445) (69,576,803) (3,364,505)
308,979 - - - 77,927 - 1,195,000 572,717 2,154,623 -
(185,388) - - - (25,801) - (239,000) (207,433) (657,622) -
12,070,626 8,834,798 4,410,897 8,042,685 7,825,355 - 956,000 2,264,003 44,404,364 1,140,838
27,587 - 6,645 2,970 4,912 - - 7,620 49,734 -
- - - - - - - 56,765 56,765 -
11,957 - - - - - - - 11,957 -
39,544 - 6,645 2,970 4,912 - - 64,385 118,456 -
12,110,170 8,834,798 4,417,542 8,045,655 7,830,267 - 956,000 2,328,388 44,522,820 1,140,838
23,697,287 12,195,592 7,776,790 9,005,724 9,815,521 1,078,115 1,219,744 3,245,797 68,034,570 2,573,014
580,940 - 155,639 169,793 196,966 - - 191,878 1,295,216 529,122
52,389 - 16,892 28,004 22,044 - - 25,342 144,671 84,966
2,048 - 660 1,095 862 - - 991 5,656 3,321
635,377 - 173,191 198,892 219,872 - - 218,211 1,445,543 617,409
24,332,664 12,195,592 7,949,981 9,204,616 10,035,393 1,078,115 1,219,744 3,464,008 69,480,113 3,190,423

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds (Continued)
December 31, 2023

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Advance Nonmajor Total Internal
Electric Electric Gas Water Wastewater Natural Gas Metering Enterprise Enterprise Service
Utility Transmission Utility Utility Utility Loan Infrastructure Funds Funds Funds
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 761,470 1,029,928 $ 1,946 17,055 $ 5248 § -8 -3 16,328 $ 1,831,975 § 34,651
Salaries and wages payable 45,482 - 9,908 16,893 12,675 - - 15,472 100,430 81,961
Compensated absences payable 79,581 - 29,833 37,387 28,190 - - 30,393 205,384 84,279
Current portion of general obligation bonds payable - 409,138 - 258,525 - - - - 667,663 -
Accrued interest payable - 74,849 - 23,542 - - - - 98,391 -
Current portion of capitalized lease obligations payable 61,690 - - - 11,974 - 105,000 116,416 295,080 -
Current portion of loan payable - - - - - 653,639 - - 653,639 -
Total current liabilities 948,223 1,513,915 41,687 353,402 58,087 653,639 105,000 178,609 3,852,562 200,891
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances from other funds - - - - - - - - - 70,000
Long-term portion of compensated absences payable 50,811 - 20,329 9,932 46,700 - - 15,129 142,901 30,334
Long-term portion of general obligation bonds payable - 7,997,844 - 2,106,423 - - - - 10,104,267 -
Long-term portion of capitalized lease obligations 126,674 - - - 35,490 - 915,000 302,513 1,379,677 -
Long-term portion of loan payable - - - - - 3,923,301 - - 3,923,301 -
Total OPEB obligation payable 303,842 - 97,970 162,415 127,844 - - 146,967 839,038 492,778
Net pension liability payable 1,877,878 - 503,100 548,851 636,689 - - 620,244 4,186,762 1,710,374
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,359,205 7,997,844 621,399 2,827,621 846,723 3,923,301 915,000 1,084,853 20,575,946 2,303,486
Total liabilities 3,307,428 9,511,759 663,086 3,181,023 904,810 4,576,940 1,020,000 1,263,462 24,428,508 2,504,377
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Inflows unearned revenue - - - - - - - 652 652 -
Deferred inflows related to pensions 131,843 - 35,322 38,534 44,701 - - 43,546 293,946 120,082
Deferred inflows related to OPEB healthcare 27,626 - 8,908 14,767 11,624 - - 13,363 76,288 44,805
Deferred inflows related to OPEB KPERS 40,878 - 13,181 21,851 17,200 - - 19,773 112,883 66,297
Total deferred inflows of resources 200,347 - 57,411 75,152 73,525 - - 77,334 483,769 231,184
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 11,882,262 427,816 4,410,897 5,677,737 7,777,891 - (64,000) 1,845,074 31,957,677 1,140,838
Restricted for Wastewater Utility Improvements - - - - 180,210 - - - 180,210 -
Unrestricted 8,942,627 2,256,017 2,818,587 270,704 1,098,957 (3,498,825) 263,744 278,138 12,429,949 (685,976)
Total net position $ 20,824,889 § 2,683,833 $§ 7,229484 5948441 § 9,057,058 $ (3,498,825) $ 199,744 $ 2,123,212 $ 44,567,836 § 454,862
Internal service funds are reported
as business-type activities in the
Statement of Net Position as they
predominately serve business-
type activities 454,862
Net position of business-type activities $ 45,022,698

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Services and supplies
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expense):
Interest income
Interest expense
Intergovernmental
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Loss on joint venture

Total nonoperating revenue (expense)
Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers from other funds

Transfers to other funds

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Advance Nonmajor Total Internal
Electric Electric Gas Water Wastewater Natural Gas Metering Enterprise Enterprise Service
Utility Transmission Utility Utility Utility Loan Infrastructure Funds Funds Funds
$24,532,616 $ 2,558,639 $5412,513 $3,035239 $ 2,357,467 $ 1,192,645 § - $2,256,102 $41,345221 $ 5,351,267
13,918 - - 120,076 6,560 - - 12,624 153,178 176,511
24,546,534 2,558,639 5412,513 3,155,315 2,364,027 1,192,645 - 2,268,726 41,498,399 5,527,778
21,430,317 1,080,249 4,057,042 1,438,530 1,640,297 4,166 806,624 1,687,760 32,144,985 5,738,965
1,259,652 133,444 72,937 518,589 234,622 - 119,500 335,166 2,673,910 152,396
22,689,969 1,213,693 4,129,979 1,957,119 1,874,919 4,166 926,124 2,022,926 34,818,895 5,891,361
1,856,565 1,344,946 1,282,534 1,198,196 489,108 1,188,479 (926,124) 245,800 6,679,504 (363,583)
135,146 79,929 51,010 9,075 40,180 21,957 11,692 15,547 364,536 28,305
- (177,292) - (69,642) (2,131) (139,211) (53,152) (9,077) (450,505) -
12,688 - (8,936) (6,265) (18,251) - - 578 (20,186) 738
- - - - - - - (3,493) (3,493) -
147,834 (97,363) 42,074 (66,832) 19,798 (117,254) (41,460) 3,555 (109,648) 29,043
2,004,399 1,247,583 1,324,608 1,131,364 508,906 1,071,225 (967,584) 249,355 6,569,856 (334,540)
350,000 - - - 50,000 - - 251,808 651,808 66,792
(2,025,994) (106,594) (586,947) (485,652) (423,716) - - (125,870)  (3,754,773) (28,236)
328,405 1,140,989 737,661 645,712 135,190 1,071,225 (967,584) 375,293 3,466,891 (295,984)
20,496,484 1,542,844 6,491,823 5,302,729 8,921,868 (4,570,050) 1,167,328 1,747,919 41,100,945 750,846
$20,824,889 $ 2,683,833 $7,229,484 $5,948,441 $ 9,057,058 §(3,498,825) $ 199,744 $2,123,212 $44,567,836 $ 454,862

Increase in net position per fund statements
Internal service funds are reported as business-type
activities in the Statement of Net Position as they

predominately serve business-type activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

$ 3,466,891

(295,984)
$ 3,170,907



-0¢ -

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from interfund charges
Other cash receipts
Cash payments for materials and services
Cash payments to employees for services and benefits
Cash payments for interfund services

Net cash provided (used by) operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from lease obligation
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Principal paid on lease obligations
Principal paid on loan
Principal paid on general obligation bonds
Interest paid on debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents per net position

Restricted cash and cash equivalents included in restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

Governmental
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Advance Nonmajor Total Internal
Electric Electric Gas Water Wastewater Natural Gas Metering Enterprise Enterprise Service
Utility Transmission Utility Utility Utility Loan Infrastructure Funds Funds Funds
$25,613,058 $ 2,570,194 $5,978,684 $3,031,969 $ 2,331,192 $ 1,205,204 $ - $2,2219,999 $42,950,300 $ -
- - - - - - - - - 5,334,616
13,918 - - 120,076 6,560 - - 12,624 153,178 176,511
(18,313,269) (587,405) (2,203,771) (133,997) (604,261) (4,166) (829,593) (317,654) (22,994,116) (2,012,313)
(1,141,115) (1,286,217) (961,673) (830,082) - - (935,801)  (5,154,888) (3,721,230)
(1,263,876) (159,618) (801,867) (436,039) (189,650) - - (348,513) _ (3,199,563) -
4,908,716 1,823,171 1,686,829 1,620,336 713,759 1,201,038 (829,593) 630,655 11,754,911 (222,416)
- - - - 26,849 - - 268,836 295,685 -
(60,616) - - - (19,416) - - (91,940) (171,972) -
- - - - - (2,247,982) (100,000) - (2,347,982) -
- (382,716) - (247,756) - - - - (630,472) -
- (191,044) - (75,593) (2,131) (139,211) (53,152) (9,077) (470,208) -
(497,569) (3,687,307) (294,196) (753,115) (391,339) - - (815,211) _ (6,438,737) (97,683)
(558,185) (4,261,067) (294,196) (1,076,464) (386,037) _ (2,387,193) (153,152) (647,392) _ (9,763,686) (97,683)
350,000 - - - 50,000 - - 251,808 651,808 66,792
(2,025,994) (106,594) (586,947) (485,652) (423,716) - - (125,870) _ (3,754,773) (28,236)
(1,675,994) (106,594) (586,947) (485,652) (373,716) - - 125,938 (3,102,965) 38,556
135,146 79,929 51,010 9,075 40,180 21,957 11,692 15,547 364,536 28,305
2,809,683 (2,464,561) 856,696 67,295 (5,814)  (1,164,198) (971,053) 124,748 (747,204) (253,238)
4,342,045 5,555,432 968,754 401,250 1,786,526 1,885,999 1,234,797 625,119 16,799,922 1,476,571
$ 7,151,728 3,090,871 $1,825450 $ 468,545 $ 1,780,712 $ 721,801 $ 263,744 $ 749,867 $16,052,718 $ 1,223,333
$ 7,151,728 3,090,871 $1,825450 $ 442,460 $ 1,600,502 $ 721,801 $ 263,744 $ 749,867 $15,846,423 § 1,223,333
- - - - 180,210 - - - 180,210 -
$ 7,151,728 3,090,871 $1,825450 $ 442,460 $ 1,780,712 $ 721,801 $ 263,744 $ 749,867 $16,026,633 $ 1,223,333
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Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
Provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
(Increase) decrease in trade accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in prepaid insurance
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows related to pensions & OPEE
Increase (decrease) in salaries and wages payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows related to pensions & OPEB
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable
Increase (decrease) in OPEB obligation payable
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability payable

Net cash provided (used by) operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds (Continued)
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Governmental

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities

Advance Nonmajor Total Internal

Electric Electric Gas Water Wastewater Natural Gas Metering Enterprise Enterprise Service

Utility Transmission Utility Utility Utility Loan Infrastructure Funds Funds Funds
$ 1,856,565 $ 1,344,946 $1,282,534 $1,198,196 $ 489,108 $ 1,188,479 $ (926,124) $ 245800 $ 6,679,504 $ (363,583)
1,259,652 133,444 72,937 518,589 234,622 - 119,500 335,166 2,673,910 152,396
1,080,442 11,555 566,171 (3,269) (26,275) 12,559 - (36,103) 1,605,080 (14,698)
(301,912) (16,656) 391,180 (46,836) 3,531 - - - 29,307 13,203
- - - - - - - - - (1,953)
103,179 - 13,865 107,569 26,411 - - 38,993 290,017 248,142
739,031 349,882 (725,469) 11,261 (96,065) - (22,969) (2,688) 252,983 8,916
8,620 - 1,473 1,522 907 - - 1,849 14,371 17,529
85,571 - 24,732 20,994 29,836 - - 27,393 188,526 63,237
15,520 - 1,219 (8,494) 3,033 - - 6,777 18,055 (8,750)
7,321 - 8,623 13,591 7,587 - - 6,921 44,043 13,282
54,727 - 49,564 (192,787) 41,064 - - 6,547 (40,885) (350,137)
$ 4908716 $ 1,823,171 $1,686,829 $1,620,336 $ 713,759 $ 1,201,038 $ (829,593) $ 630,655 $11,754,911 $ (222,416)




CITY OF WINFIELD, KANSAS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The City of Winfield, Kansas (the City) was founded in 1869. Located in the northern half of Cowley County,
the City has a population of over 12,000 living within an area of 12 square miles. The City operates under a
charter adopted February 2, 1873, as a Commission/Manager form of government. The City provides a full
range of municipal utility services to its citizens including electric, gas, water, wastewater and sanitation
services. Other municipal services include police and fire protection, ambulance services, construction and
maintenance of streets, drainage facilities and other infrastructure, recreation and cultural activities, a
municipal golf course, community and industrial development, planning and zoning, building inspection,
cemetery operations and maintenance, general administration and internal support services.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City of
Winfield, Kansas (primary government) and its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be
financially accountable. A primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of an
organization's governing body and (1) it is able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
primary government. The component units discussed in the following paragraphs are included in the City's
reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationship with the City.

Discretely presented component units
Winfield Public Library

The Winfield Public Library operates the public library in the City. The Winfield Public Library is accounted for
using the same principles as the governmental fund types of the City. The City Commission appoints all
Library Board members and the Library Board may not purchase or lease a site or erect a building for use of
the library without the approval of the City Commission. The Library Board taxes are levied under the taxing
authority of the City and are included as part of the City's total tax levy. These taxes are accounted for in the
Library special revenue fund of the City. The Library Board also receives funding through state assistance
programs and other sources. The Library Board issues separate financial statements and a copy can be
obtained by contacting the administrative offices of the Winfield Public Library, 605 College, Winfield, Kansas
67156.

Winfield Housing Authority

The Winfield Housing Authority (Housing Authority) operates the City's housing projects. The Winfield Housing
Authority is accounted for using the same principles as the business-type funds of the City. The City created
the Winfield Housing Authority as its agent in 1978 under the provisions of K.S.A. 17-2340. The City
Commission appoints all board members and has the ability to impose its will on the Winfield Housing
Authority. Although the City does not have the authority to approve or modify the Housing Authority's
operational and capital budgets, and the Housing Authority has the ability to issue bonded debt, the City is
fiscally responsible for the Housing Authority since it was created as an agent of the City. The City
Commission has delegated to the Housing Authority the power to operate and manage the low-rent housing
projects of the City. The Housing Authority is on a June 30th fiscal year end and data included in these
financial statements are for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The Winfield Housing Authority issues
separate financial statements and a copy can be obtainted by contacting the administrative offices of the
Winfield Housing Authority, 1417 Pine Terrace, Winfield, Kansas 67156.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
Joint ventures

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual arrangement (or interlocal
agreement) and is owned, operated or governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity
subject to joint control. The participants retain (a) an on-going financial interest or, (b) an on-going financial
responsibility. The City participates in the following joint ventures:

Strother Field Airport and Industrial Park

The Cities of Winfield and Arkansas City, Kansas entered into an interlocal agreement to create Strother Field
Airport and Industrial Park (Strother Field). Three commissioners from both cities comprise the Strother Field
governing body. The two cities jointly own Strother Field. The cities provide no financial support to Strother
Field. Separate audited financial statements are available from Strother Field Airport and Industrial Park, P.O.
Box 47, Winfield, Kansas 67156.

Cowley County Humane Society Interlocal Agreement

The Cities of Winfield and Arkansas City, Kansas entered into an interlocal agreement to jointly operate and
fund the animal shelter. The purpose of this agreement is to provide for the continuity for the use of the Cowley
County Humane Society to temporarily house, care for and disperse unwanted or stray animals. Each City and
the Society shall continue to have equal one-third ownership interest in the shelter facility. Records and
reporting are maintained by the Humane Society, and both cities contribute annually to the operations of the
shelter and have an ongoing financial interest in the organization. Unaudited financial statements are available
from the Cowley County Humane Society, 7468 222nd Road, Winfield, Kansas 67156.

Arkansas City/Winfield Recycling Center

The Cities of Winfield and Arkansas City, Kansas entered into an interlocal agreement to jointly purchase and
operate a recycling center. Additionally, the City of Winfield offers single stream recycling to Winfield
residents. Records are maintained by the City of Winfield and both cities share equally in the costs and
recycling revenues. No separate financial statements are prepared for this joint venture. Further financial
information can be obtained from the City of Winfield, 200 E. 9th Avenue, Winfield, Kansas 67516. A summary
of 2023 revenues and expenses for the recycling center are as follows:

Recycling revenues $ 28,475
Recycling expense 62,250
Depreciation Expense 3,492

Related organizations

A related organization is an organization of which a primary government is not financially accountable
(because it does not impose will or have a financial benefit or burden relationship) even though the primary
government appoints a voting majority of that organization's governing board.

William Newton Memorial Hospital

The City Commission is responsible for appointing the Board members of the William Newton Memorial
Hospital (Hospital), but the City's accountability for the Hospital does not extend beyond making appointments.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principals generally
accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described here-in.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
Basis of presentation (cont.)

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide, including a statement of net position and
a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial
information.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements, consisting of the statement of net position and the statement of
activities, report information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activities has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type actives, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from the legally separate
component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the City and its component units at year-end.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
service, program or department and therefore are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program
revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as governmental revenues.

Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate
statements for each fund category - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.
Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider are met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers property tax
revenues to be available in the period for which levied and other revenues if they are collected in 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgements, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions
under leases are reported as other financing sources.

Sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Property
taxes and special assessments are not available as explained in Note 1, topic Property Taxes and Other
Receivable, and result in unavailable revenue. All other revenue items are considered measurable and
available only when cash is received by the City.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (cont.)
The proprietary funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except those accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the resources accumulated and payments
made for principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

Capital Improvements Fund - The Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for many of the major capital
improvements of the City (other than those financed in proprietary funds) and is financed primarily through on-
half of the local sales tax revenues and other City transfers.

Special Streets and Highway - to account for street maintenance operations. Financing is provided through
motor fuel taxes distributed from the State of Kansas Special City and County Highway Fund.

Public Safety Needs Study - to account for a project authorized by the City Commission in 2015 to determine
the long-term solution for police, fire and ambulance facilities.

Additionally, the City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Electric Utility Fund - The Electric Utility Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the
City's electric generation and distribution system. The City purchases electricity and maintains a 65 KW
generation capacity. Electric service is provided to more than 7,400 meters, both within the City and in
surrounding areas, and sold wholesale to neighboring cities.

Electric Transmission Fund - The Electric Transmission Fund accounts for the ongoing costs of the newly
formed partnership of GridLiance Great Plains and the City of Winfield to jointly own and operate the
transmission lines previously owned 100% by the City. GridLiance Great Plains now owns 65% interest of this
asset with the City owning 35% of the asset.

Gas Utility Fund - The Gas Utility Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's gas
distribution system. The City purchases natural gas and provides service to approximately 5,200 meters.

Water Utility Fund - The Water Utility Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City's
water treatment plant and the water distribution system. The Winfield City Lake provides adequate quality
water supply to Winfield citizens providing water to approximately 5,200 meters. The City also provides access
to water for five rural water districts and one neighboring city.

Wastewater Utility Fund - The Wastewater Utility Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance
of the City's wastewater collection system and wastewater treatment plant. The City collects and treats effluent
of City residents providing service through the City to approximately 5,000 customers.

Natural Gas Loan Fund - to account for the ongoing costs and collections related to the State of KS loan that
was taken out to cover the increased costs related to the winter storm of February 2021. The City is collecting
fees from customers over the next 10 years to provide funds to repay the loan.

Advance Metering Infrastructure Fund - used for the improvement of the metering system of the City’s utilities

including water, sewer, electric and natural gas. Long term financing is paid through transfers from applicable
utility funds by percentage of the project total.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (cont.)

The City also reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects.

Capital Project Funds - The Capital Project Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that
are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Permanent Funds - Permanent Funds are used to report an endowment restricted to the perpetual care of the
municipal cemeteries.

Internal Service Funds - The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement
basis and to account for the City's self-insurance activities.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments for franchise fees and other charges between the
City's enterprise funds and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reports for the various functions concerned.

During the course of operations, the City has activity between funds for various purposes. Any residual
balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/due to other funds and advanced to/from other
funds. While these balances are reported in the fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between funds included in governmental
activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included in the governmental activities column.
Similarly, balances between funds included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net
amount is included in the business-type activities column. The City does not have a formal policy on removing
internal activity on the government-wide financial statements.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In fund financial
statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in fund financial
statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.
Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as transfers in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in
business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type
activities column.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or
privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. In addition, general
revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperation items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds' principal ongoing operations. Principal operating revenues of the proprietary fund are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for Enterprise and Internal Service Funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting these criteria are reported as nonoperation revenues and expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Measurement focus and basis of accounting (cont.)

Property taxes are not susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on
behalf of the City are recognized as revenue. In addition, gaming facility revenues collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue. Recognized state shared taxes represent
payments received during the current fiscal period. State statutes specify distribution dates for such shared
taxes and consequently, for revenue